



Waldoboro Walking Trails Final Report

Prepared for:

Town of Waldoboro, Maine

Prepared by:

Mary and Sons Ethan Belanger (Project Manager) Anthony Salafia Jadon Petty Kyle Peoples Mary Adams Michael Serpico

04/29/2021

Executive Summary

This report contains analysis, designs, and recommendations for all aspects of the Waldoboro Walking Trails project performed by Mary and Sons. Mary and Sons has also provided a cost analysis of all aspects of the project. Below is a brief description of the final designs of each aspect provided in this report.

Sidewalk Design:

A new sidewalk design along Route 1 will allow for safe pedestrian access to the new walking trails system, as well as to the Town Office located at the corner of Route 1 and Jefferson Street. The eastern portion of the new sidewalk will run along the southern side of Route 1 from the intersection of Main Street to the location of the culvert. The western portion of the new sidewalk will continue along the northern side of Route 1 from the culvert to the intersection of Jefferson Street. The sidewalks have been designed as 4 ft wide, 3 in raised, and will be constructed using a hot mix asphalt. Mary and Sons has designed American Disability Act (ADA) accessibility at all driveways along the sidewalks for ease of pedestrian use.

Upon investigation of the current drainage along Route 1, Mary and Sons has determined that there is no need for new drainage additions to the existing system. There are no underground utilities that will be interfered with during construction of the sidewalk.

Kalers Corner Footbridge:

A footbridge has been designed to cross the Medomak River, connecting the walking trails to the park located along Kalers Corner Street. This footbridge will give access to the walking trails for foot and bike traffic from the opposing side of the Medomak River. The footbridge is 8 ft wide and 80 ft long consisting of two W33x130 girders. It will be supported by two slab foundations, one existing on each side of the Medomak River. The reinforced concrete slab foundations are 10 ft long by 5 ft wide with 3 ft of thickness.

Additionally, Mary and Sons has provided quotes for two different prefabricated bridge options as well. These two options are provided by Bridge Brothers and Contech Engineering Solutions LLC. Providing our custom designed girder bridge along with the prefabricated options gives the Town of Waldoboro flexibility in the chosen design of a footbridge.

Culvert Retrofit and Walkway:

Mary and Sons has designed a new walkway and water passage channel through the culvert location on Route 1 between Jefferson Street and Main Street. The redesign of this culvert will continue to allow for sufficient water passage of the stream, while connecting the sidewalks to the walking trails. This will allow for pedestrians to cross Route 1 through the retrofitted culvert without any traffic interference. Mary and Sons has determined that demolition of the existing culvert floor will be required to begin construction of the new water channel and walkway.

The walkway is designed as a 4 ft wide concrete path raised 2 ft above the bottom of the water channel, resulting in 7 ft of clearance between the walkway and ceiling of the culvert. The walkway will not be suitable for bike traffic and is not designed to be ADA compliant.

Mary and Sons has not designed any baffles to be added to the new water channel inside the culvert. It is suggested that the Town of Waldoboro consider the addition of a new baffling system once the walkway construction has been completed.

Walking Trails:

The primary walking trail begins at the culvert located on Route 1 and traverses southwest alongside a stream, until reaching the intersection Jefferson Street and Elm Street. The walking trail then continues up the side of Elm Street and traverses west to the footbridge location. Two 4 ft wide walking trails will connect the new sidewalk along Route 1 to the culvert walkway, one on each side of the culvert. These two connecting trails will have a compacted crushed stone finish, providing safety and drainage benefits for pedestrians.

Cost Analysis:

Mary and Sons performed a cost analysis for each individual aspect of the project discussed above. Below is a table consisting of the total cost of each individual project as well as an estimated project construction duration. The cost related to the custom design bridge represents the total cost of both of the custom girder bridge as well as the foundations. Pricing of prefabricated bridge options will be discussed later.

Sub-Project	Individual Project Cost	Project Duration Estimate (hours)
Route 1 Sidewalk	\$93,000	120
Custom Design Bridge	\$145,000	240
Walk-Under Culvert	\$60,000	160
Walking Trails	\$57,000	96
Total	\$355,000	616

Acknowledgements

Mary and Sons would like to give thanks to the help and mentorship provided by professors and professionals in the completion of this capstone report.

To Max Johnstone, our client from the Town of Waldoboro as the Planning and Development Director, thank you for answering any questions we had in a timely manner. Having a client that was easy to work with and discuss design options with was very helpful throughout the work process. We are also thankful for allowing us to practice our engineering skills that we have learned over the past four years.

Mary and Sons would also like to express our gratitude to the faculty at The University of Maine for their expertise and advice, specifically:

- Professors Edwin Nagy, Eric Landis, and Xenia Rofes for their assistance resolving structural concerns and design considerations regarding the footbridge superstructure design and walk through culvert.
- Professor Aaron Gallant for providing suggestions and advice, as well as lecture material when implementing soil analysis throughout the project and foundation design for the footbridge.
- Professor Derek Nener-Plante for assisting with requirements for the sidewalk design, as well as key advice on material selection.
- Maine DOT representative Douglas Coombs for the existing elevations of Route 1.

Mary and Sons would also like to thank the following professional individuals:

• Jeffery Mcguire from CPM Constructors for answering questions regarding the construction of the culvert. Jeffery was the Superintendent of the culvert project when it was replaced in 2015 for MaineDOT and provided insight to design parameters at that time of construction.

Table of Contents

Index of Figures	5
Index of Tables	5
Introduction	6
Team Members	7
Exclusions	8
1. Permitting and Zoning	9
1.1 Conclusions and Recommendations	9
1.2 Assumptions	10
2. Sidewalk Design	10
2.1 Sidewalk Location	10
2.2 Geotechnical Analysis	11
2.3 Sidewalk Results	12
3. Kalers Corner Footbridge Design	15
3.1 Hydraulic Analysis of the Medomak River	15
3.2 Footbridge Foundation Design	15
3.3 Footbridge Superstructure Design	16
3.4 Soil Erosion & Water Protection Control Plan	17
4. Culvert Retrofit and Walkway	19
4.1 Hydraulic Analysis of Culvert	19
4.2 Walkway Design	19
4.3 Connection to Walking Trail and Sidewalks	20
5. Walking Trails Design	21
5.1 Mapping Layout	21
5.2 Slope Stability and Design	23
5.3 Land Usage Rights	24
6. Cost Estimations	24
6.1 Conclusions and Recommendations	24
6.2 Assumptions	25
DISCLAIMER	26
References	27
Appendix	30

Index of Figures

Figure 1.1 - Location of the Project	6
Figure 1.2 - Visual Scope of Project	7
Figure 2.1 - Stationing of Sidewalk	10
Figure 2.2 - Sidewalk Location	11
Figure 2.3 - Sidewalk Web Soil Survey Soil Map	12
Figure 4.1 - Location of Culvert Walking Trail	20
Figure 5.1 - Walking Trail Mapping	21
Figure 5.2 - Walking Trail Cut/Fill Chart	22

Index of Tables

Table 2.1 - Sign Removal Description and Location	13
Table 2.2 - Sign Addition Location and Description	14
Table 6.1 - Cost Estimate Summary Based on Our Recommendations	24

Introduction

This report specifies the design work and recommendations provided by the University of Maine, 2021 Civil Engineering Capstone Group, Mary and Sons. The purpose of the project is to provide the Town of Waldoboro a system of connecting walking trails in downtown Waldoboro near the Waldoboro Town Office along Route 1 as shown below in Figure 1.2. Traditional wooded walking trails and paved sidewalks are combined with a walkway through an existing culvert and a new footbridge crossing the Medomak River to provide walking access between the Kalers Corner Rest area and Elm Street. The project takes place on either public property or private property which permits recreational use of the impacted land. Following completion of preliminary research, a 10% design for a girder bridge crossing the Medomak River, a 10% design for a walkway spanning through the existing culvert and a full design of a sidewalk along Route 1 are all provided. The girder bridge design includes detailed recommendations on the superstructure of the footbridge and the supporting foundations on either side of the river bank. The designs allow pedestrians to safely cross the Medomak River and Route 1 with no disturbances.



Figure 1.1 - Location of the Project



Figure 1.2 - Visual Scope of Project

Mary and Sons is a group of six senior Civil Engineering students at the University of Maine. This report is required in a senior capstone design course. Under no circumstance shall this work be taken for use in replacement of work done by a professional engineer. The goal of the course is to teach students real life engineering applications before graduation. Please see the Disclaimer section on page 26 for more information.

Team Members

This section provides contact information of each team member of Mary and Sons.

Mary and Sons

- Ethan Belanger, Project Manager ethan.belanger@maine.edu
- Anthony Salafia anthony.salafia@maine.edu
- Jadon Petty jadon.petty@maine.edu
- Kyle Peoples kyle.peoples@maine.edu
- Mary Adams mary.adams@maine.edu
- Michael Serpico michael.serpico@maine.edu

Exclusions

- Mary and Sons did not fill out any permits that would be required in completing the project.
- Mary and Sons did not design the embankment of the sidewalk.
- Mary and Sons did not size or select catch basins for the drainage system.
- Mary and Sons did not design anchorage connections between the footbridge girder base plates and the footbridge foundations.
- Mary and Sons did not design any railing or lighting systems for the footbridge.
- Mary and Sons did not present any options for ramp accessibility onto the footbridge.
- Mary and Sons did not prepare any demolition plans for the demolition required within the culvert.
- Mary and Sons did not specify what fill is to be used in the retrofit of the culvert floor.
- Mary and Sons did not redesign any baffling for the new water channel in the culvert.
- Mary and Sons did not design the connection between the walkway and the existing concrete within the culvert.
- Mary and Sons did not present any options for the railing system suggested for the culvert walkway.
- Mary and Sons did not account for any clearing that may be required for the walking trails, as requested by the client.
- Mary and Sons did not include cost of material delivery in the cost estimations.

1. Permitting and Zoning

1.1 Conclusions and Recommendations

Both state and town permitting will be required to ensure the standards of both municipalities are met. The Town of Waldoboro will require the filing of a <u>Site Plan Review and Subdivision</u> <u>Ordinance Preliminary Application</u> (Appendix A.1.1) for the site of the Route 1 sidewalk redesign, the culvert walkway renovation, and footbridge implementation. This will be followed by a comprehensive construction plan, site evaluation, and public hearing for approval. In addition, a <u>Sign Permit Application</u> (Appendix A.1.2) will need to be filed for signage along the walking trails that connect all of the proposed infrastructure subprojects. Finally, at the local level a <u>Shoreland Zoning Permit Application</u> (Appendix A.1.3) will be submitted and reviewed for the footbridge construction. The site falls inside the Shoreland area in accordance to Article 7 in the *Town of Waldoboro Land Use Ordinance*. This will also be reviewed by the planning board simultaneously with the previously mentioned <u>Site Plan Review and Subdivision Ordinance</u> <u>Preliminary Application</u>.

State regulations, mainly regarding environmental protections, will also need to be met prior in order to proceed successfully. The <u>Department of Environmental Protection Permit by Rule</u> <u>Notification Form</u> (Appendix A.1.4) will need to be filed for the Route 1 sidewalk renovation, culvert walkway renovation, and footbridge implementation. Due to the permanent disturbance of waterways on the Medomak River where the footbridge will be constructed an <u>Application for a Natural Resources Protection Act Permit</u> (Appendix A.1.5) will have to be submitted and reviewed. If revisions are made to the construction plan after approval, there is a revision application that can be found on the Maine Department of Environmental Protection website. No erosion control permits will be necessary but engineers and commercial construction crews will be required to follow Maine Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices while construction is underway.

The locations where sidewalk renovation will occur are within the Route 1 Commercial B District (Appendix A.1.6). This zone was referenced specifically under ordinances 6.6.5 and 6.6.6 from the *Town of Waldoboro Land Use Ordinance*. The location of the footbridge across the Medomak River is within the Shoreland Area according to the Waldoboro Tax Maps.

The sidewalk along Route 1 is designed as a raised sidewalk with proper handicap accessibility to meet Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations.

1.2 Assumptions

It is assumed that all permits and ordinances found on the Town of Waldoboro and Maine Department of Environmental Protection websites were complete and accurate to the date 1/29/2021.

2. Sidewalk Design

2.1 Sidewalk Location

The proposed sidewalk will start at Main Street on the East end of Route 1 and continue down Route 1 towards the Town Office and Jefferson St on the West end. The sidewalk crosses over the redesigned culvert to connect Route 1 pedestrian traffic with the Town Office. The exact location can be seen in Figure 2.2. The location of the sidewalk was chosen based on factors like the existing physical obstacles, flow of foot traffic, workability for construction, and to avoid overhead utility relocation. The chosen location is from STA 0+00 LT to STA 18+50 LT, then the sidewalk starts again on the opposite side of the street from STA 22+50 LT to STA 27+00 LT indicated in Figure 2.2. The map of stationing can be seen in Figure 2.1. The location allows pedestrians to safely walk down Route 1 and have access to the walking trails from the sidewalk. The sidewalk utilizes the culvert walkway to switch sides of the street, allowing for access to the Town Office as well.



Figure 2.1 - Stationing of Sidewalk



Figure 2.2 - Sidewalk Location

2.2 Geotechnical Analysis

The geotechnical engineering report, conducted as a Web Soil Survey, shows the existing soils located under the proposed sidewalk location are classified as SM, ML, and PT. These soil classifications are according to the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS). The majority of the soil's top layer is classified as PT which is an organic soil indicating it is mainly decomposed plant material. The soils found in the proposed location of the sidewalk are Lyman-Rock outcrop-Tunbridge complex, Swanville silt loam, and Udorthents Urban land complex. The soil map indicating location of the soil type can be seen below labeled Figure 2.3. These results go into more detail classifying the soils listed above and include the USCS soil classification.



Figure 2.3 - Sidewalk Web Soil Survey Soil Map

2.3 Sidewalk Results

Mary and Sons has designed a raised sidewalk along Route 1 on the right side when looking from the Town Office to the Main St intersection. The sidewalk will be 4 ft wide with a 3 in raise off the existing pavement, as seen in the sidewalk cross section detail (Appendix A.2.1). These are minimum requirements for Maine, found from the Federal Highway Association (FHA) practices and procedures. The material was selected from the Maine DOT standard specifications as 9.5 HMA (incidental) for the asphalt and Type A base Course as the base. The sidewalk is designed for a 0.5% slope of the sidewalk towards the gutter line to direct stormwater off the road and into existing drainage. Lastly, hot mix asphalt (HMA) was selected by the client and Mary and Sons due to the low impact of foot traffic and aesthetic requests from the Town of Waldoboro.

2.3.1 Drainage

Mary and Sons discovered that there is still a functioning drainage system in place along Route 1. The current drainage system is working to satisfaction, as there are no major heaves from infiltration or fatigue cracking along the shoulder of the road from moisture collection. At this time there is no need to implement a new drainage system for the sidewalk renovation will not impact the current designed system. The locations of existing utilities were collected from the local/state documents received from the Town of Waldoboro. Utility mapping indicates that there are no existing underground utilities that interfere with the construction of the proposed sidewalk. All electricity conduits are overhead, and all water and sewer networks are West of our proposed location and are located along Route 1 in front of the Town Office.

2.3.2 Signage Plan

The 15 signs listed in Table 2.1 will need to be removed and relocated away from the road just outside of the location of the sidewalk. If there is a need for removal or relocation of any signs, the state will determine relocation and removal. Signs will also need to be added at the stationing location listed in Table 2.2 indicating the path down to the walk under culvert that crosses under the road.

Station (LT)	Sign #	Sign Description
1+50	1	Route 1, Route 220 directional
4+00	2	Rockland, Washington, Friendship Directional (green)
4+50	3	Directional Intersection (arrows)
5+00	4	40 MPH speed limit
6+00	5	Mid Coast Marine Supply
6+50	6	Traffic Light Indication
8+00	7	JCT 220
10+50	8	Shell Gas Station
12+00	9	Historical Society Museum
16+00	10	40 MPH speed limit
22+50	11	AllPlay and Vannah Insurance Agency
23+50	12	Waldoboro Historical Village
24+00	13	Crosswalk Ahead
26+50	14	Directional Intersection (arrows)
27+00	15	Crosswalk Here (with light)

Table 2.1 - Sign Removal Description and Location

Sign Addition List	
18+00	Crosswalk ahead (indicates walk under culver crossing)
24+00	Crosswalk ahead (indicates walk under culver crossing)

Table 2.2 - Sign Addition Location and Description

2.3.3 Traffic Control Plan

The traffic control plan (TCP) developed by Mary and Sons lists the channelization devices and approach signage that are suggested throughout the sidewalk construction site, as shown below (Appendix A.2.2). It is not expected that any of the sidewalk renovation will dramatically affect vehicle traffic patterns. If not all, most of the sidewalk improvements will be able to be done without shutting down any lanes of traffic, especially along the wide stretch of Route 1. In special occasions where the contractor will need more space for installing the sidewalk, provisions should be made for alternate one-way movement through the constricted section. Within the TCP, typical applications from the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices are given to display how safe work zones will be maintained while minimizing traffic interferences for both shoulder work with minor encroachment and a full lane closure if needed.

2.3.4 ADA Requirement List

ADA Requirements pertaining to the sidewalk design:

- Handicap accessible curb ramps are required at every location of a crosswalk.
- For curb ramps constructed after January 26, 1992 (post-ADA), the slope must be 8.33% (1:12) or less.
- The cross slope of the ramp run itself may not exceed 2% (1:50). (On a curb ramp, the cross slope is the slope perpendicular to [across] the direction of pedestrian travel on the ramp run.)
- The ramp, or ramp run, must be at least 36 in wide, not including the flared sides.
- The ramp run must have detectable warnings i.e., dome-shaped bumps that extend the full width and depth of the ramp.
- Transitions from the ramp to the walkway, gutter, and street must be flush (level) and free of abrupt level changes.
- The gutter must have a slope of no more than 5% (1:20) toward the ramp.

All information was found from Chapter 6 of ADA Best Practices Tool Kit for State and Local Governments.

3. Kalers Corner Footbridge Design

3.1 Hydraulic Analysis of the Medomak River

3.1.1 Conclusions and Recommendations

The Medomak River has a watershed area of approximately 106.1 square miles between freshwater watershed and watershed below the head of tide. There are 48.1 square miles that lie in the Town of Waldoboro and the below head of tide watershed spans 26 square miles at the head of the river. Due to the large stake the town has in the river Mary and Sons is aware of the importance of implementing and reviewing an environmental protection plan while footbridge construction is underway. The Medomak River has a width of 74.3 ft at the proposed location of the footbridge. Based upon an open channel analysis of this location, it is strongly recommended that the foundations of the footbridge not constrict the river to a width any less than 37 ft wide which based on the design they will not. The 80 square miles of freshwater watershed could subsequently be affected so Mary and Sons designed the footbridge foundation on the existing bank.

3.1.2 Assumptions

It was assumed that the river is a rectangular channel in the calculations corresponding to the open channel analysis. It was also assumed that the slope and Manning's roughness values were constant throughout the proposed footbridge location.

3.2 Footbridge Foundation Design

3.2.1 Subsurface Conditions

A Web Soil Survey was conducted by Mary and Sons for the area of design around the Medomak River. The gathered information in the report was pulled from various tables containing properties on the water content of each individual soil, the depth to water tables, and engineering properties such as soil classifications. The report provided the necessary variables for bearing capacity and settlement calculations. From the report, Mary and Sons can conclude that the subsurface soil at the eastern foundation location is Bootbay silty clay (BoC, CL per USCS) with a water table depth of 23 cm. The subsurface soil at the western foundation location is Swanville silt loam (Sw, CL per USCS) with a water table depth of 15 cm. After extensive research through websites and resources, Mary and Sons could not gather any boring information on the surrounding embankment on the Medomak River.

3.2.2 Conclusions and Recommendations

The foundations will be optimally adequate in settlement and bearing capacity with a width of 5 ft, a length of 10 ft, and a depth of 3 ft. The foundation dimensions were optimized through

calculating the maximum expected settlement. Allowable settlements at foundation locations were determined to be 2 in, with an allowable differential settlement of 1/250. The settlement under the eastern proposed foundation was calculated to be 1.7 in, while the settlement under the western proposed foundation was calculated to be 1.9 in, The differential settlement was determined to be 20 times less than the allowable differential settlement. It was concluded that the designed foundation will sustain any bearing capacity limitations by a factor of safety of 1.61, which satisfies the requirement of a factor of safety of 1.5.

The minimum required reinforcement of the foundations was calculated in accordance with ACI Code-318-19 to provide adequate strength and serviceability for the loading of the foundations. The reinforcement of the foundations will consist of size #7 rebar running longitudinally in both directions on top and on bottom of the foundation. A total of 40 #7 bars will be used in the foundation, 26 of which will have a length of 54 in, with the remaining 14 having a length of 114 in. Three CAD drawings of the foundations can be seen in Appendix A.3.1 Footbridge Drawing Package.

3.2.3 Assumptions

Existing geotechnical information was used to make the conclusions that are stated within this document. It is assumed that the soil parameters displayed on the Web Soil Survey are accurate to those that are present at the footbridge foundation locations. As stated before, a subsurface investigation would confirm or reject this assumption and is highly recommended to support the conclusions.

The reinforcement design was computed under the assumption that the construction contractor will use nonprestressed normal weight concrete (f'c = 4,000 psi) and standard nonprestressed deformed rebar reinforcement (fy = 60,000 psi).

3.3 Footbridge Superstructure Design

3.3.1 Structural Analysis

The loading conditions on the footbridge were found using AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specifications and the LRFD Guide Specifications for the Design of Pedestrian Bridges. The unfactored governing loads applied to each girder are:

- Total dead load: 230 plf
 - Self Weight of Beam: 130 plf
 - Weight of steel grate deck: 50 plf
- Total live load: 476 plf
 - Maintenance Vehicle: 476 plf
- Total vertical wind load: 80 plf
- Total horizontal wind load: 138 plf

The loads were factored using Strength I per AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design specifications. The unfactored load on the deck was calculated to be 164 psf. The analysis was done by hand and then checked using Risa 2D modeling.

3.3.2 Structural Steel Member Design

Mary and Sons designed an 80 ft long by 8 ft wide bridge crossing the Medomak River at Kalers Corner. The main superstructure in the custom design is composed of a steel grate deck on top of two 80 ft W33x130 beams. Mary and Sons received a quote from Indiana Gratings on the steel grate deck which is composed of an 8 ft x 80 ft, 1/2 in x 3/16 in, 19W4 welded steel bar grating. The cross members bracing the two girders are composed of two single angles (L 3x2-1/2x1/4) which are welded to connector plates welded to the 80 ft footbridge girders. The cross members are spaced at 20 ft along the span of the bridge. The 80 ft girders are supported by steel base plates on top of the concrete foundation. The visual display and details of the custom superstructure design can be seen in Appendix A.3.1 Footbridge Drawing Package. These designs were based on the loads provided in the structural analysis.

3.3.3 Assumptions

In the structural analysis of the footbridge, the load due to the decking was assumed to be 25 psf. As design came to completion, the steel grate decking used in design came out to weigh 11 psf. Since Mary and Sons is not designing handrails or anything else that might sit permanently above the deck, 25 psf was used for the entire analysis to leave room for additions.

The structural design process assumed no preference in superstructure material. The overall aesthetic design of the bridge was briefly discussed and steel was deemed sufficient as the structural member material. Although a wood or concrete footbridge is possible, steel was chosen as the deck material to ensure the structure could fully span the river without any intermediate support. In addition, a steel grate deck is more durable and lighter than an alternative wood deck and will not require any snow removal, thus reducing maintenance costs for the Town of Waldoboro. Although wood has a cheaper up-front cost material, Mary and Sons recommends a steel grate deck for the longevity of the footbridge and can conclude it is a better long-term economic decision.

3.3.4 Conclusions and Recommendations

For the custom bridge design, if additional components such as handrails or light fixtures are added, they should not exceed 14 psf since assumed total deck weight was 25 psf and the steel grate decking has a weight of 11 psf.

3.4 Soil Erosion & Water Protection Control Plan

The three main goals of the Soil Erosion & Water Protection Control Plan are to protect the river banks, reduce the impact on the surrounding vegetation, and eliminate debris from reaching the

Medomak River. Plan details and recommendations were all made based on the Maine Department of Environmental Protection's Maine Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices (BMPs) Manual for Designers and Engineers and specific laws relevant to the project.

The existing foundation has been left on the eastern bank of the river and it will need to be removed and properly transported off the site to a predetermined location. The existing foundation consists of large retaining wall boulders that will need to be transported to a local gravel pit selected by the contractor of the job. The amount of the foundation that will be removed will be decided on sight but to accommodate this removal and prevent erosion, riprap will be placed from the end of the new foundation to the waterline. This is required per the Erosion and Sediment Control Law, Title 38 M.R.S.A. Section 420-C (Appendix A.3.2 SEWPCP Documents). If extra support is needed, erosion protection riprap will be installed along the siding of the foundations. Riprap is to be placed as soon as possible after removal and needs to be checked weekly while construction is underway. Riprap is sized based on the chart in Appendix A.3.2 SEWPCP Documents from the State of Maine Aquatic Resources Management Strategy Forum Stream Smart Road Crossing Pocket Guide. The mean channel slope found in the StreamStats Report of the Medomak River was 6.06%. The maximum flow depth of the Medomak is above 3 ft, thus 18 - 24 in riprap sizing is required along the embankment.

The first thing done to minimize the impact of construction on the surrounding vegetation is to leave the soil untouched as long as possible. Each river bed vegetation (e.g. shrubbery, small trees, grass) and soil will be removed to accommodate equipment and enable proper placement of the designed foundation. Once vegetation is removed and soil is exposed, mulch and seeding will be laid following construction completion to reverse impact as per the <u>Natural Resources</u> <u>Protection Act, Title 38 M.R.S.A. Section 480 A-JJ</u> (Appendix A.3.2 SEWPCP Documents). Mulching will be done with an Erosion Control Mix and requires inspections weekly and following storm events. The Erosion Control Mix must follow the standards described in Appendix A.3.2 SEWPCP Documents and is to be chosen by the contractor on site. Seedling will also be chosen on site and is to be placed following mulching.

No water flow should be necessary for excavation of the site and is to be avoided to prevent runoff into the Medomak River. To prevent construction debris from reaching the waterway, silt fences will be placed just above the waterline. Silt fences are cheap and easy to implement and provide ample protection of the waterway. Fences should be inspected weekly and are to be removed when the project reaches completion. The foundation design proposed by Mary and Sons does not require work in the waterways, thus no permit will be requested and entry by workers or machinery is strictly prohibited. To further protect the Medomak River, all footbridge features that can be manufactured off-site should be and then transported on-site when they are ready to be secured. Since no waterway work is permitted, footbridge decking is to be lifted into

place to secure into the foundation. Both of these measures will minimize on site stockpiles and debris ending up in the waterway.

The job site is to be inspected weekly and following any storm events. In preparation for storm events the contractor is responsible for covering any stockpiles to prevent contaminated runoff into the waterway. The contractor is also held responsible for proper disposal of all waste including removed foundation, vegetation, and soil.

4. Culvert Retrofit and Walkway

4.1 Hydraulic Analysis of Culvert

4.1.1 Conclusions and Recommendations

Demolition of the existing culvert floor is required for construction of the walkway design. Once demolition is complete, Mary and Sons has proposed a redesigned 5 ft wide rectangular channel for the water passage. Through analysis of the modified culvert channel, Mary & Sons anticipates a 1.24 ft rise in average water elevation during a 100 year flood level event. Through analysis, Mary and Sons has also determined that the channel should not be constricted to a width less than 4.0 ft, any larger of a constriction will lead to a choke upstream.

4.1.2 Assumptions

The analysis of the stream through the culvert was performed based on the information provided by the USGS StreamStats program. It is assumed that the data provided by the USGS is accurate. Hydraulic analysis was performed by Mary & Sons based on the assumption that demolition of the existing culvert floor is complete.

4.2 Walkway Design

4.2.1 Walkway Design & Recommendations

Mary and Sons recommends that the walkway conservatively be 2.0 ft above the water channel bed due to extrapolated estimates used in the StreatStats report. This would leave 7 ft clearance between the walkway and the top of the open culvert. The water channel will be constricted to 5.0 ft upon construction of the walkway, greater than the 4.0 ft minimum width determined through the channel analysis. Similar to the walkway height, this channel constriction is conservatively set to be 1.0 ft wider than the allowable constriction, due to the extrapolated estimates in the StreatStats report. A 4.0 ft wide walkway will be in accordance with the Federal Highway Administration Bicycle & Pedestrian Transportation Standard. A sketch of the newly designed channel and walkway can be seen attached in Appendix A.4.1 Culvert Retrofit Sketch.

Mary and Sons suggests that a 3.5 ft tall railing be installed along the channel side of the walkway per recommendations from the Federal Highway Administration.

4.2.2 Assumptions

The walkway through the culvert was designed under the assumption that demolition of the existing culvert floor surface has been completed. The walkway was also designed under the assumption that the calculated 100 year flood height for the new culvert geometry is accurate.

4.3 Connection to Walking Trail and Sidewalks

4.3.1 Path Connection & Signage Plan

As requested from the client, the walking trail entrance path will consist of 2 in crushed stone overlaying an aggregate base at depths of 0.5 ft and 1.5 ft. Both layers will need to be compacted. A geotextile slope protection option was proposed to the client by Mary and Sons to further protect the walking trail, as it sits on a steep inclined hill. The length of the entrance of the trail, from the sidewalk to the culvert trail, will be around a 350 ft linear run. The figure seen below, Figure 4.1, shows the proposed location of the trail which aims to hug the tree line and stay as far away from the property border as possible. An estimate for the cost of the walking trail (Appendix A.4.2 Cost Estimation of Culvert Walking Trail) was also conducted to give the client an idea of the pricing of the options available. A crushed stone slope protection fabric was included in the estimation as a proposed idea by Mary and Sons to provide safety and efficiency to the trail. The client will have a choice on if they want the protection or not with an included comparison on the cost for both options.



Figure 4.1 - Location of Culvert Walking Trail

There are no signs that are legally required for the proposed walkway going through the culvert. It may be advisable to install "Tunnel Ahead" signs at either end of the sidewalk entrances to the walkway, as to not surprise any pedestrians. In addition it was found that the soil is rated "very limited" due to a high level of saturation in the areas surrounding the stream. It may be beneficial for the town to consider signage to warn users of saturated soil and wet concrete to prevent slipping or falling. However, signage is completely optional for the Town of Waldoboro and is not required per any state regulations.

5. Walking Trails Design

5.1 Mapping Layout

Mapping of the proposed walking trails along with the sidewalk connection is shown below in Figure 5.1. This trail begins with access to pedestrians from either the footbridge located at Kalers Corner or from the sidewalk along Route 1 near the culvert and Town Office. Starting at the culvert entrance users will then follow along the stream bed through the woods until reaching Jefferson Street. Users will need to safely cross and continue to the beginning of Elm Street

requiring the installation of a crosswalk. The trail design then follows the short wooded trail down Elm Street and ends at the footbridge across the Medomak. Additionally, the trail will need to cross the inlet river at the point specified on Figure 5.1, but given the unsubstantial width of the channel a commercial trail bridge will suffice.



Figure 5.1 - Walking Trail Mapping

5.2 Slope Stability and Design

5.2.1 Design

A slope stability analysis was done to confirm that a 4 ft wide walking trail with a 3:1 slope can be constructed to connect the Route 1 sidewalk to the trail going through the culvert sloping perpendicular to the existing 2:1 side slope. The slope stability calculation conservatively modeled the slope and only considered the worst-case scenario. It can be concluded based on the slope stability analysis that the slope is stable under dry and drained conditions. Considering the underlying soil is granular and the slope is relatively steep, the water should be drained efficiently. However, the negative effects of possible water infiltration in the sloping soil reduces the stability of the slope and should be considered during construction. This being the case, the use of a rip rap at the bottom of any slope, along with a stabilizing geotextile fabric can be implemented to increase the stability of the slope. Fine-grained soils such as clay and silt shall not be permitted for use as they are more susceptible to infiltrated water.

Seen in Figure 5.2, based on the cut/fill design a total volume of 666 cubic ft of fill material will be needed to achieve a 3:1 walking trail slope from the sidewalk down to the trail. This Slope extends for approximately 70 ft.



Figure 5.2 - Walking Trail Cut/Fill Chart

5.2.2 Assumptions

The subsurface profile indicated that the sloping soil is fill overlying sand, both being classified as sandy silts. The assumption that a dry, sandy slope is present since it is much safer in this situation than if a clay or silt based soil was present.

5.3 Land Usage Rights

Following the review of the Town of Waldoboro Land Use Ordinance, it was determined that no permits were needed for the construction of the walking trail and no guidelines were set for the public access trails across private property. The client expressed that in the past they have asked permission every year to utilize this land as to ensure the private owner has full control if need be. Mary and Sons suggests continuing this relationship with the property owner, for there are only two areas which would need special permission for the proposed trail. These areas will be the crushed stone trail leading down from the sidewalk located along Route 1, through the wooded area beneath Route 1, across Jefferson Street, to the end of Elm Street reaching the new footbridge. Appendix A.5 shows the tax maps containing the walking trail location and property lines around the trails. The walking trails can be seen on the West end (Elm Street), crossing through the woods, to the East end by the culvert and trail entrance adjacent to Route 1.

6. Cost Estimations

6.1 Conclusions and Recommendations

The materials and implementation of the sidewalk along Route 1 is estimated to cost about \$93,000.

The materials and implementation of the walk-under culvert design is estimated to cost about \$60,000.

The walking trails design included two options. One option has a crushed stone slope protection and the other without. With the crushed stone slope protection the project will cost about \$57,000 and without the slope protection it will cost about \$50,000. These estimates include the cost of the cut fill plan for the path from the sidewalk to the walk-under culvert. Based on our slope stability calculations we recommend using the crushed stone slope protection option.

The custom designed footbridge along with the foundations is estimated to cost about \$145,000. This price also includes the quote received from Indiana Gratings for a steel grate deck. Quotes for prefabricated bridges were collected from Bridge Brothers and Contech. The prefabricated options only include price of the footbridge superstructure and do not include the price of the

foundations. Bridge Brothers supplied a quote of \$120,441 with a metal grate deck and \$98,561 with a pine deck. The estimated total project schedule given was 16 weeks. The Contech quote offered was \$85,000 dollars. This quote includes a concrete or wood deck both listed at the same price and delivery. Contech did not give us an estimated project duration. Our custom foundations are estimated to cost about \$70,000. Therefore, including the cost of foundations with the other prefabricated bridge quotes, our custom design bridge is the likely cheapest since our cost estimate includes a deck and implementation. All quotes can be seen in and spreadsheet calculations can be seen in Appendix A.6.

All of the subprojects come together for a total estimated cost of \$355,000 with an estimated project duration of 16 weeks.

Sub-Project	Individual Project Cost	Project Duration Estimate (hours)
Route 1 Sidewalk	\$93,000	120
Walk-Under Culvert	\$60,000	160
Walking Trails	\$57,000	96
Custom Design Bridge	\$145,000	240
Total	\$355,000	616

 Table 6.1 - Cost Estimate Summary based on Our Recommendations

6.2 Assumptions

For the sidewalk, the time of the project was estimated to take 3 weeks. For the footbridge, the time of the project was estimated to take 6 weeks total, including construction of the foundations. The cost of the walking trails along with the cost of the cut/fill plan for the slope leading to the walk-under culver from the sidewalk was estimated to take 3 weeks. Time estimates are based on previous experiences on construction sites from the Mary and Sons team and consulted professionals. Some jobs team members have been on include bridge, sidewalk, and other smaller reinforced concrete projects such as dam and parking garage rehabilitation. These projects have consisted of similar components to those required in this project.

It was assumed that all heavy equipment would need to be rented. It was also assumed that these machines will only be used for a partial time of the project since this equipment will not be running for the entire duration of the project. Assumptions of the running time for the equipment is also based on past experience gained from Mary and Sons members.

DISCLAIMER

The materials contained in this document and any supporting documentation were developed by us as students as part of our education in the College of Engineering in order to gain supervised engineering problem-solving experience. Therefore, information and recommendations, while useful for understanding a particular project's scope and possibilities for implementing solutions, should not be relied upon solely for the purposes of advancing a project beyond conceptual levels.

Furthermore, such material should not substitute for or replace the services of a design professional practicing in the areas of engineering or architecture, particularly for projects whose direct or indirect impact may affect the safety, health, or welfare of the public.

We students who prepared this information look forward to the opportunity to serve with fidelity the public, our future employers, and clients. In providing you with this information, our intention is to uphold and enhance the honor, integrity, and dignity of the engineering profession. We thank you for the opportunity to develop our skills through our work on this project.

References

ACI Committee 318, & American Concrete Institute. (2019). Building code requirements for structural concrete (ACI 318-19): An ACI standard : Commentary on building code requirements for structural concrete (ACI 318R-19). American Concrete Institute.

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials. (2010). AASHTO LRFD

Bridge Design Specifications (5th ed).

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (2009). LRFD Guide

Specifications for the Design of Pedestrian Bridges.

American Institutes of Steel Construction. (2017). Steel Construction Manual (15th ed.).

- Bowles, J. E., 1977, Foundation Analysis and Design, McGraw-Hill, Inc., New York.
- Caltrans Geotechnical manual. (2021, March). Retrieved April 15, 2021, from https://dot.ca.gov/programs/engineering-services/manuals/geotechnical-manual

Coduto, D.P. et al. (2016). Geotechnical Engineering: Principles & practices. Pearson.

Concrete Network. (2021, April 05). Concrete prices 2021 - how much does concrete cost?

Retrieved April 15, 2021, from https://www.concretenetwork.com/concrete-prices.html

Cotnoir, S.R. (2020). 2020 Fair Minimum Wage Rates Heavy & Bridge Aroostook County.

Bureau of Labor Standards, Aroostook County Heavy & Bridge 2020.pdf (maine.gov)

Draft Guidelines For Obtaining 100-Year Flood Elevations in Approximate Zone A or Unmapped Areas. (n.d.). Retrieved from http://dnrc.mt.gov/divisions/water/operations/docs/floodplain/guidelines_100yrflood.pdf/ view

Durante, N., Sutphin, A., & Tepfenhart, O. (2021, March 18). Rebar prices & COSTS: REBAR

cost per FOOT, TON & Pound. Retrieved April 15, 2021, from https://upgradedhome.com/rebar-prices/#:~:text=Cost%20Of%20Rebar%20Per%20Poun d%20You%20can%20buy,the%20rebar%2C%201%20foot%20may%20equal%201%20p ound.

Erosion & Sedimentation Control. (n.d.). Retrieved January 29, 2021, from

https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/erosion/

- Interactive, P. (2018, September 19). Bituminous surface treatments. Retrieved February 19, 2021, from https://pavementinteractive.org/bituminous-surface-treatments/.
- Kulhawy, F. H. (1990). *Manual on Estimating Soil Properties for Foundation Design* (Rep.). Ithaca, NY: Cornell University.
- Maine Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual. (n.d.). Retrieved January 29, 2021, from https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/stormwater/stormwaterbmps/index.html
- Manual on uniform traffic control devices: For streets and highways. (2009). In Manual on

uniform traffic control devices: For streets and highways. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Dept.

of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration.

Materials. (n.d.). Retrieved April 15, 2021, from http://georgechall.com/materials/

MetalMiner prices: Carbon steel prices. (2021, March 03). Retrieved April 15, 2021, from

https://agmetalminer.com/metal-prices/carbon-steel/

Natural Resources Protection Act (NRPA). (n.d.). Retrieved January 29, 2021, from

https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/nrpa/index.html

- NAVFAC DM7-02 Foundations and Earth Structures (Vol. 7.02). (1986). Alexandria, VA: Naval Facilities Engineering Command.
- Project Civic Access Toolkit, Chapter 6: Curb Ramps and Pedestrian Crossings under Title II of the ADA. (2007, May 7). Retrieved February 18, 2021, from https://www.ada.gov/pcatoolkit/chap6toolkit.htm#fn13.
- Soil Survey Staff, Natural Resources Conservation Service, United States Department of Agriculture. Web Soil Survey. Available online at the following link: http://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/. Accessed [10/7/2020].
- State of Maine Aquatic Resources Management Strategy Forum. Stream Smart Road Crossing Pocket Guide. (n.d.). Retrieved April 24, 2021, from https://www.maine.gov/mdot/publications/docs/brochures/pocket_guide_stream_smart_w eb.pdf

Steel-Angle: Steel angle iron for metal fabrication. (n.d.). Retrieved April 15, 2021, from

http://alantlynninc.com/SteelAngle.html

The Home Depot. (n.d.). Retrieved April 15, 2021, from

 $\label{eq:https://www.homedepot.com/?mtc=SEM-B-F_Brand-B-Multi-Multi-Multi-NA-NA-ETA-NA-NA-THD_BT1&cm_mmc=SEM-B-F_Brand-B-Multi-Multi-Multi-NA-NA-ETA-NA-NA-THD_BT1-7170000002466128-58700000049525002-43700008283988357&gclid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481d52e4beee6486ef4b04&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_rl=5041&msclkid=5b248e116a481&gclsrc=3p.ds&ds_r$

- The Town of Waldoboro Land Use Ordinance. (2020, Nov). Retrieved April 1, 2021, from https://www.waldoboromaine.org/LUO%202020.pdf.
- Town of Waldoboro. FB Environmental Associates. (2019, Jan). *Lower Medomak River: Watershed-Based Management Plan.* Retrieved February 15, 2021, from https://www.waldoboromaine.org/.
- Town of Waldoboro. Medomak Project Task Force. (n.d.). *Medomak River Water Quality Project*. Retrieved February 15, 2021, from https://www.waldoboromaine.org/.
- Turner, S., & Turner-Fairbank Highway Research Center. (2006). Federal highway administration university course on bicycle and pedestrian transportation. U.S. Dept. of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Research, Development, and Technology, Turner-Fairbank Highway Research Center.

United rentals - industrial & construction equipment Rentals & tools. (2021, April 15). Retrieved

April 02, 2021, from https://www.unitedrentals.com/#/

U.S. Dept. of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. (2013, November 21). A Guide for Maintaining Pedestrian Facilities for Enhanced Safety. https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/ped_bike/tools_solve/fhwasa13037/chap6.cfm

USGS. (2021). StreamStats. United States Geological Survey. https://streamstats.usgs.gov/ss/

Waldoboro, ME. (n.d.). Retrieved January 29, 2021, from https://www.waldoboromaine.org/

What is the value of your service? (2019, January 03). Retrieved April 15, 2021, from

https://www.concretepumpers.com/acpa-news/2019/01/03/what-value-your-service

Appendix

- **Appendix A.1 : Permitting and Zoning Ordinance Documents**
- Appendix A.2 : Sidewalk Design
- **Appendix A.3 : Footbridge Design and Drawings**
- Appendix A.4 : Culvert Walkway
- **Appendix A.5 : Walking Trails**
- **Appendix A.6 : Cost Estimations**

A.1 : Permitting and Zoning Ordinance Documents

A.1.1 : Site Plan Review and Subdivision Ordinance Preliminary Application

		Application Number_	
		Fees Preliminary	Pd
		Fees Final	Pd
	Town of Waldobo	ro	
Site Plan Review a	nd Subdivision Ordinance P (Please Type or Print)	reliminary Application	
Type of Application: Shoreland Zone	Site Plan Review Flood Plain	Subdivision Or Hazardous Mat	dinance erials
Brief description of proposed project:	_	—	
		·	
Address:	Zoning District	Man:	ot

Address:	Zoning District:	Map:	Lot:
Name of Applicant:			
Address:	Town:	State:	Zip:
Telephone Numbers:			
Local Contact, Name:		Telephone:	
Name of Owner (if not applicant):			
Address:	Town:	State:	Zip:

Applicant must attach a copy of deed, signed option agreement or lease agreement. If applicant is a corporation, attach certificate from the Secretary of State (Maine) showing authority to do business in Maine.

Name of Applicant's Engineer:		_ Telephone:	
Address:	_ Town:	State:	_Zip:
Name of Applicant's Attorney:		_ Telephone:	
Address:	_ Town:	State:	_Zip:
Name of Applicant's Soil Scientist		Telephone:	
Address:	_ Town:	State:	_Zip:
Name of Applicant's Land Surveyor:		Telephone:	
Address:	_Town:	State:	_Zip:

I certify that the information contained in this application is correct to the best of my knowledge.

Signature (applicant):	Dat	ie:
Title:		

Action by the CEO, Planning Board, Board of Appeals		
Informal Pre-Application Review:	Date:	By:
Preliminary Review:	Date:	By:
Site Walk:	Date:	By:
Public Hearing:	Date:	By:
Modifications:	Date:	By:
Final Review:	Date:	By:
Modifications:	Date:	By:
Appeals:	Date:	By:
Certificate of Occupancy:	Date:	By:

A.1.2 : Sign Permit Application

Fee Paid: \$ Inspection Date:	For Office Use Only	Sign Issu	• Permit #: e Date:
	SIGN PERMIT APPLICAT TOWN OF WALDOBORO 1600 Atlantic Highway Waldoboro, Maine 04572 (207) 832-5369 ceo@waldoboron	TION naine.org	
Property Owner:		Telephone:	:
Mailing Address:		State:	Zip:
Name of Contractor/Appli	icant:	<u> </u>	<u>-</u>
Mailing Address:		Telephone: _	
Property Address:			
Tax Map: Lo	ot: Zoning District:		Acres:
Number of Sign(s) Reques	sted: Est. Cost of Project: \$	Height	t of Sign(s)
Setbacks: Road Right of V	tanding Attached Illuminated	Exterior Dimens	10ns:
Scioacks. Road Right of V	way Property i	Line:	
I HEREBY CERTIFY THA HAVE BEEN AUTHORIZE THE INFORMATION CON KNOWLEDGE AND AGRE APPLICABLE LAWS OF T MUST BE ISSUED BEFORE I Signature (property owner	T THE PROPOSED WORK IS AUTHORIZED ED BY THE OWNER TO MAKE THIS APPLI ITAINED IN THIS APPLICATION IS ACCUP EE TO CONFORM TO THE WALDOBORO I THIS JURISDICTION. I UNDERSTAND THAT A I INSTALL THE SIGN	D BY THE OWNE CATION. I ALSO RATE TO THE BE LAND USE ORDIN A CERTIFICATE O	R AND THAT I CERTIFY THAT ST OF MY NANCE AND TO F C OMPLIANCE
I HEREBY CERTIFY THA HAVE BEEN AUTHORIZE THE INFORMATION CON KNOWLEDGE AND AGRE APPLICABLE LAWS OF T MUST BE ISSUED BEFORE I Signature (property owner Permit fee: \$40.(T THE PROPOSED WORK IS AUTHORIZED ED BY THE OWNER TO MAKE THIS APPLI TAINED IN THIS APPLICATION IS ACCUP EE TO CONFORM TO THE WALDOBORO I THIS JURISDICTION. I UNDERSTAND THAT A I INSTALL THE SIGN r/applicant):	D BY THE OWNE ICATION. I ALSO RATE TO THE BE LAND USE ORDIN A CERTIFICATE ON Date: Date:	R AND THAT I CERTIFY THAT ST OF MY NANCE AND TO F C OMPLIANCE
I HEREBY CERTIFY THA HAVE BEEN AUTHORIZE THE INFORMATION CON KNOWLEDGE AND AGRE APPLICABLE LAWS OF T MUST BE ISSUED BEFORE I Signature (property owner Permit fee: \$40.0 CEO:	T THE PROPOSED WORK IS AUTHORIZEE ED BY THE OWNER TO MAKE THIS APPLI TAINED IN THIS APPLICATION IS ACCUP EE TO CONFORM TO THE WALDOBORO I THIS JURISDICTION. I UNDERSTAND THAT A I INSTALL THE SIGN r/applicant): D0 per sign and \$50.00 refundab Date rec	D BY THE OWNE ICATION. I ALSO RATE TO THE BE LAND USE ORDIN A CERTIFICATE OF Date: Date: Date: Date deposit for	R AND THAT I CERTIFY THAT EST OF MY NANCE AND TO F C OMPLIANCE
I HEREBY CERTIFY THA HAVE BEEN AUTHORIZE THE INFORMATION CON KNOWLEDGE AND AGRE APPLICABLE LAWS OF T MUST BE ISSUED BEFORE I Signature (property owner Permit fee: \$40.0 CEO: Fee Paid: \$	T THE PROPOSED WORK IS AUTHORIZED ED BY THE OWNER TO MAKE THIS APPLI TAINED IN THIS APPLICATION IS ACCUP EE TO CONFORM TO THE WALDOBORO I THIS JURISDICTION. I UNDERSTAND THAT A I INSTALL THE SIGN r/applicant):	D BY THE OWNE CATION. I ALSO RATE TO THE BE LAND USE ORDIN A CERTIFICATE ON Date: Date: Date: Date:	R AND THAT I CERTIFY THAT ST OF MY NANCE AND TO F C OMPLIANCE
SITE PLAN/ PLOT PLAN TOWN OF WALDOBORO

SITE PLAN MUST ACCOMPANY THIS APPLICATION AND INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

- A. Lot dimensions
- B. Names and locations of roads, streets, and bodies of water
- C. Exact location of existing and proposed sign(s) and distance from lot lines
- D. Scaled sketch of proposed sign(s)



A.1.3 : Shoreland Zoning Permit Application

For Office U	Jse Only	
Fee Paid: \$	Pe	rmit #:
Inspection Date:	Iss	ue Date:
SHORELAND ZONING P	ERMIT APPLICATI	ON
TOWN OF WA	LDOBORO	
1600 Atlantic	Highway	
Waldoboro, Ma	nine 04572	
(207) 832-5369 ce	o@waldoboromaine.org	
be obtained <i>in addition to</i> a building or other permit, w	here necessary.	o.
Property Owner.		e
Mailing Address:	State:	Zip:
Name of Contractor/Applicant:		
Mailing Address		
Maning Address:	Telephone:	

Map: ____ Lot: ____ Zoning District: _____ Acres: ____ Sewer: Septic: _____ # Bedrooms Y/ N

Detailed description of proposed project/use:

Mobile/Manufactured Home: Year Make

Dimensions: _____ Stories: _____ Approximate Cost of Project: \$____ (Excluding plumbing & electrical work- separate permits required)

Mobile homes moving from another Municipality must provide written proof that all outstanding property taxes have been paid.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PROPOSED WORK IS AUTHORIZED BY THE OWNER AND THAT I HAVE BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE OWNER TO MAKE THIS APPLICATION. I ALSO CERTIFY THAT THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS APPLICATION IS ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND AGREE TO CONFORM TO THE WALDOBORO LAND USE ORDINANCE AND TO ALL APPLICABLE LAWS OF THIS JURISDICTION.

Signature (property owner/applicant): Date:

Application must include:

- Site plan, including location of road, property lines water bodies and wetlands, septic, and well, • including location and dimensions of proposed building.
- Proof of right, title, or interest in property
- If applicable, the completed Subsurface Wastewater Disposal System application.
- Erosion and sedimentation control plan (See Article 7 sec. 18)

SITE PLAN/ PLOT PLAN TOWN OF WALDOBORO

Minimum Required Information:

- 1. Property lines
- 2. Location of all buildings on the lot
- Location of proposed structures, showing all setbacks

- Location of well(s) and septic system(s)
- 5. Wetlands, brooks, and other water bodies within 100ft of the project

 Structural Data: Width:
 Length:
 Height:

 Scale: 1 box =
 '____'

		\searrow															 		
(-										 					 	 		
		7									 					 	 		
		/									 			 	 	 	 		
INC	JKI	н									 								
			<u> </u>								 								
L	L	L	L	I	l	L	L	L	L	L	 					 	 	II	

TOWN OF WALDOBORO Information for Permit Holders and Applicants

Please Note: All local Land Use, Shoreland Zoning, Flood Plain Ordinances and regulations still apply.

Other Codes Used in the Town of Waldoboro:

- 1. National Electrical Code, (NEC) published by the National Fire Protection Association
- 2. NFPA 101 Life Safety Code, published by the National Fire Protection Association
- 3. The Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code (MUBEC)

* Building permit will expire if the work is not complete within two (2) years from the date permit was issued. Work on the project should not continue after the two (2) year period without obtaining a new permit.

District:	Rural	Residential	Rural Village Business	Village	Historic Village	Downtown Business	Route 1 Rural	Route 1 Urban	Industrial
Minimum Lot Size	80,000 sq. ft.	80,000 sq. ft.	<i>5,000-</i> 80,000 sq. ft.	<i>5,000</i> -80,000 sq. ft.	None	None	80,000 sq. ft.	<i>5,000</i> -80,000 sq. ft.	80,000 sq. ft.
Road and Shore Frontage	200 ft.	200 ft.	150 ft	150 ft	75 ft	None	400 ft	150 ft	200 ft
Road Setback	75 ft.	75 ft.	25 ft.	25 ft.	25 ft.	None	100 ft	25 ft.	150 ft.
Side, Rear Setbacks	30 ft.	30 ft.	<i>15</i> ft.	<i>15</i> ft.	15 ft.	None	30 ft.	<i>15</i> ft.	30 ft.
Max. Lot Coverage	40%	40%	50%	50%	50%	100%	40%	40%	40%
	Maximum Building Height: 3 1/2 stories or 42 feet								
	SHORELAND ZONING: High Water Line Setback – 100 feet, Maximum Building Height – 35 Feet								

Lot Dimensional Requirements

A.1.4 : Permit by Rule Notification Form

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

PERMIT BY RULE NOTIFICATION FORM (For use with DEP Regulation, Natural Resources Protection Act - Permit by Rule Standards, Chapter 305)

APPLICANT INFORMATION (Owner)			AGENT INFOR		f Applying on	Behalf of Owner)		
Name:				Name:				
Mailing Address:					Mailing Address:			
Mailing Address:					Mailing Address:			
Town/State/Zip:					Town/State/Zip:			
Daytime Phone #:			Ext:		Daytime Phone #:			Ext:
Email Address:					Email Address:			
			PRO	JECT	INFORMATION			
Part of a larger project? (check 1):	YesNo	After the Fact? (check 1):	Yes Project No mean		t involves work below low water? (check 1):	☐ Yes ☐ No	Name of waterbody:	
Project Town:			Town Email Address:				Map and Lot Number:	
Brief Project Description:								
Project Location & Brief Directions to Site:								
PERMIT BY RULE ments for Permit-by standards in the Se Sec. (2) Act. Adj. Sec. (3) Intake Pi	 PERMIT BY RULE (PBR) SECTIONS (Check at least one): I am filing notice of my intent to carry out work that meets the requirements for Permit-by-Rule (PBR) under DEP Rules, <u>Chapter 305</u>. I and my agent(s), if any, <u>have read</u> and will comply with all of the standards in the Sections checked below. Sec. (2) Act. Adj. to Prot. Natural Res. Sec. (9) Utility Crossing Sec. (16) Coastal Sand Dune Projects 							meets the require- mply with all of the Sand Dune Projects Permit Extension
 Sec. (4) Replacer Sec. (6) Movemer Sec. (7) Outfall P Sec. (8) Shoreline 	nent of Stru nt of Rocks ipes e Stabilizati	or Veg.	Sec. (11) St Sec. (12) Re Sec. (13) F& Sec. (13) Pt Sec. (15) Pt	ate Tra estorat &W Cre ublic B	ansportation Facilities ion of Natural Areas eat./Water Qual. Impro oat Ramps	U Sec Sec v. U Sec	c. (18) Maintena c. (19) Act. Near c. (20) Act. Near	nce Dredging SVP Habitat Waterfowl/Bird Habitat
NOTE: Municipal per for stream crossings	rmits also <i>n</i> s and for pro	<i>ay</i> be required. C ojects involving w	Contact your I vetland fill. Co	ocal contact	ode enforcement office the Army Corps of Eng	e for informa gineers at the	tion. Federal pe e Maine Project	rmits may be required Office for information.
<u>NOTIFI</u>	CATION F	ORMS CANNOT	BE ACCEP	TED \	WITHOUT THE NEC	ESSARY AT	TACHMENTS	AND FEE
☐ <u>Attach</u> all are outline	required so d in Chapt	ubmissions for ter 305 and may	the PBR Se differ depe	ction(nding	s) checked above. T on the Section you	he required are submit	d submissions ting under.	for each PBR Section
Attach a lo	cation map	that clearly ider	ntifies the site	e (U.S.	G.S. topo map, Main	e Atlas & Ga	azetteer, or sim	ilar).
Attach Pro registration are not req	of of Legal information uired to pro	<i>Name</i> if applicar n (available at <u>ht</u> vide any proof o	nt is a corpor tp://icrs.infor f identity.	ation, me.org	LLC, or other legal en g/nei-sos-icrs/ICRS?N	ntity. Provide <u>MainPage=x</u>	e a copy of Sec). Individuals a	retary of State's nd municipalities
FEE: Pay by credit of feeschedule.pdf	ard at the	Payment Portal y \$256.	. The Permit-	-by-Ru	le fee may be found	here <u>https://</u>	www.maine.go	v/dep/
Attach pay	ment conf	irmation from t	he Payment	Porta	I when filing this no	otification fo	orm.	
Signature & Certif • I authorize sta the project sit • I understand	 Signature & Certification: I authorize staff of the Departments of Environmental Protection, Inland Fisheries & Wildlife, and Marine Resources to access the project site for the purpose of determining compliance with the rules. I understand that this PBR becomes effective 14 calendar days after receipt by the Department of this completed form, the 							
required subr	nissions, ai	nd fee, <i>unless th</i> Form, I represe	e Departmer	nt appr roject	roves or denies the P meets all applicabi	BR prior to t	hat date. ments and sta	ndards in Chapter
305 rule and that t	he applica	nt has sufficier	it title, right,	or in	terest in the propert	y where the	e activity takes	s place.
Signature of Agen Applicant (may be	t or typed):					Date:		
Keep a copv as a	record of r	permit. Email this	s completed	form v	vith attachments to D	EP at: DEP	.PBRNotificatio	n@maine.gov

EXAMPLE 2 A COPY as a record of permit. Email this completed form with attachments to DEP at: <u>DEP.PBRNotification@maine.gov</u> DEP will send a copy to the Town Office as evidence of DEP's receipt of notification. No further authorization will be issued by DEP after receipt of notice. A PBR is valid for two years, except Section 4, "Replacement of Structures," are valid for three years. Work carried out in violation of the Natural Resources Protection Act or any provision in Chapter 305 is subject to enforcement.

A.1.5 : Application for a Natural Resources Protection Act Permit

Department of Environmental Protection					
Bureau of Land & Water Quality					
17 State House Station					
Augusta, Maine 04333					
Telephone: 207-287-7688					

FOR	DFP	USF
1 013		000

ATS #____

L- ____ Total Fees: __

Total Tees.

Date: Received ____

APPLICATION FOR A NATURAL RESOURCES PROTECTION ACT PERMIT → PLEASE TYPE OR PRINT IN BLACK INK ONLY

1. Name of Applicant:			5.Name of Agent:							
2. Applicant's Mailing Address:	s dress:				6. Agent [*] Addres	's Mailing s:				
3. Applicant's Daytime Phone #:					7. Agent's Phone	s Daytime #:				
4. Applicant's Email Address (Required from <i>either</i> applicant or agent):					8. Agent's	s Email Ad	dress:			
9. Location of Activity: (Nearest Road, Street, Rt.#)					10. Town:			11. Count	y:	
12. Type of Resource: (Check all that apply)	 River, s Great P Coastal Freshwa Wetland Significa Fragile 	tream or bro ond Wetland ater Wetland Special Sig ant Wildlife Mountain	ook d gnifican Habitat	ce	13. Name 14. Amou (Sq	of Resour Int of Impa I.Ft.)	ce: ct:	Fill: Dredging/	/eg Remov	al/Other:
15. Type of Wetland:	G Foreste	d			FC	OR FRESH	IWATER V	WETLAN	DS	
(Check all that apply)	Scrub S	hrub		Tier	1		Tier 2		Tier	3
	 Wet Me Peatland Open W Other 	adow d /ater		0 - 4,999 5,000-9,9 10,000-1	sq ft.			sq. ft. □ > □ s	43,560 s maller tha sq. ft., n for Tier	q. ft. or in 43,560 ot eligible [.] 1
16. Brief Activity Description:										
17. Size of Lot or Parc	el	aquara f	iaat ar			MNorthing			ooting:	
& UTM Locations:	rost:	Square i		<u> </u>		in norunny.	·		asung	
	ov 🗆 i	vn		e 🛛 puro	chase option	on 🗆 wri	tten agree	ment	l ot	<i>#</i> .
19. Deed Reference N	umbers:	DUUK#.	F	aye.			vuilibers.	Iviap #.	LOI	#.
21. DEP Staff Previous Contacted:	sly				22. Part of project:	of a larger	□ Yes	After-th Fact:	e- 🔲 Ye	es lo
23. Resubmission	□ Yes→	If yes, pro	evious			Pre	vious proje	ect		
of Application?:		applicatio	n# moofD	ED		ma	inager:	Brovious	Watland	
Violation?:		enforcem	ent staf	f involved:			21	Alteratio	n:	
26. Detailed Direction	s									
to the Project Site	:		•							
27. TIER 1 TIER 2/3 AND						2/3 AND II		PERMITS	<u> </u>	
 Topographic Map Narrative Project Description Plan or Drawing (8 1/2" x 11") Photos of Area Statement of Avoidance & Minimization Statement/Copy of cover letter to MHPC 			Topo Topo Copy Informa Wetl (Attach Informa Alter includir impacts	ographic Map ographic Map of Public Nation Meeting ands Delinea ment 1) that tion listed ur natives Anal og description s were Avoid	 Control/Construction Plan Functional Assessment (Attachment 3) Functional Assessment (Attachment 4), if required Compensation Plan (Attachment 4), if required Compensition Plan (Attachment 4), if required Compensition Plan (Attachment 4), if required Statement/Copy of cover letter to MH Description of Previously Mined Peath if required If required 				chment 3), if ent 4), if uired er to MHPC ed Peatland,	
28. FEES Amount En	closed:			_		_		_	_	
	DTIEIC	TIONS) SICNIA	TIDE	9100	ATED (

CERTIFICATIONS AND SIGNATURES LOCATED ON PAGE 2

<u>IMPORTANT</u>: IF THE SIGNATURE BELOW IS NOT THE APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE, ATTACH LETTER OF AGENT AUTHORIZATION SIGNED BY THE APPLICANT.

By signing below the applicant (or authorized agent), certifies that he or she has read and understood the following :

DEP SIGNATORY REQUIREMENT

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT

Authority: 33 USC 401, Section 10; 1413, Section 404. Principal Purpose: These laws require permits authorizing activities in or affecting navigable waters of the United States, the discharge of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States, and the transportation of dredged material for the purpose of dumping it into ocean waters. Disclosure: Disclosure of requested information is voluntary. If information is not provided, however, the permit application cannot be processed nor a permit be issued.

CORPS SIGNATORY REQUIREMENT

USC Section 1001 provides that: Whoever, in any manner within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States knowingly and willfully falsifies, conceals, or covers up any trick, scheme, or disguises a material fact or makes any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or representations or makes or uses any false writing or document knowing same to contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or entry shall be fines not more than \$10,000 or imprisoned not more than five years or both. I authorize the Corps to enter the property that is subject to this application, at reasonable hours, including buildings, structures or conveyances on the property, to determine the accuracy of any information provided herein.

DEP SIGNATORY REQUIREMENT

"I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined the information submitted in this document and all attachments thereto and that, based on my inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, I believe the information is true, accurate, and complete. I authorize the Department to enter the property that is the subject of this application, at reasonable hours, including buildings, structures or conveyances on the property, to determine the accuracy of any information provided herein. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment.

Further, I hereby authorize the DEP to send me an electronically signed decision on the license I am applying for with this application by emailing the decision to the address located on the front page of this application (see #4 for the applicant and #8 for the agent)."

SIGNATURE OF AGENT/APPLICANT

Date:

NOTE: Any changes in activity plans must be submitted to the DEP and the Corps in writing and must be approved by both agencies prior to implementation. Failure to do so may result in enforcement action and/or the removal of the unapproved changes to the activity.

A.1.6 : Land Use Ordinance Regulations 6.6.5 & 6.6.6

6.6.5 Route One Commercial A District. The purpose of the Route One Commercial A District, which applies to portions of Route One, is to replace the strip development with well-planned, attractive, well – landscaped development, to encourage a uniform street-scape along the corridor, to minimize roadway openings onto Route One, and to provide vehicle connections between lots. The district is designated for a mix of residential/commercial uses, commercial uses, light industry/manufacturing, agriculture and forestry.

6.6.6 Route One Commercial B District. The purpose of the Route One Commercial B District is to allow business and light industry/manufacturing development along Route One with fewer restrictions than in the Route One Commercial A District.

A.2 : Sidewalk Design

A.2.1 : Sidewalk Cross Section



W	MARY AND SONS
4/5/202 [*]	A REVISION.
1 PROJECT NO.	EB CHECKED.
1/1 DRAWING NO.	1":5' MA SCALE AT A4. DRAWN.
waldoboro, Maine, U.S. Route 1	me: Sidewalk Cross Section

A.2.2 : Traffic Control Plan

Mary and Sons Traffic Control Plan - Waldoboro, ME

Summary

Mary and Sons is working with the town of Waldoboro on a series of walking trails throughout the downtown Waldoboro area. One aspect of the project is improving and installing a sidewalk along Route 1 from the Town Office to the intersection at Moody's and then on Main St. to the Old Route 1 intersection. This Traffic Control Plan has been developed to provide the Town of Waldoboro guidelines for traffic control measures to provide safe, continuous and effective traffic flow throughout the sidewalk improvements.

Signage and Channelization

This traffic control plan is provided in accordance with Part VI of the 2009 edition of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Channelization devices will be used to delineate travel lanes throughout the project at spacing called for in Part VI of the 2009 edition of the MUTCD. Channelization devices that may be used include:

Drums Cones Temporary Pavement Markings

Approach signing and work area signing will be placed at locations in accordance with Part VI of the 2009 edition of the MUTCD. Temporary tripod easels shall be labeled NCHRP 350 and 2009 MUTCD compliant daytime use only. Easels will be weighted by use of tethered sandbags when used. Sandbags shall be in contact with the ground. Signs that are not on tripod mounted signs shall be installed using two breakaway posts. Approach signage that may be used include:

Road Work 500 Feet (Ahead) Shoulder Closed Ahead One Lane Road Ahead Lane Shift Arrows Flagger Sign Be Prepared to Stop End Road Work

Mary and Sons plan for all signs to be in accordance with the 2009 version of the MUTCD for an urban high-speed road. This temporary sign package will be similar to MUTCD Typical Application 6 - Shoulder Work with Minor Encroachment (TA-6) and Typical Application 3 - Work on the Shoulders (TA-3) when close to intersections. In special occasions where the contractor will need more space for installing the sidewalk, provisions should be made for alternate one-way movement through the constricted section via methods such as flagger control, a flag transfer, a pilot car, or stop or yield control. Typical Application 10 - Lane Closure on a Two-Lane Road Using Flaggers (TA-10) visually shows how flaggers can be used to safely provide an alternate one-way road to provide a wider work space.

Vehicle and Pedestrian Traffic Considerations

It is not expected that any of the sidewalk construction will dramatically affect vehicle traffic patterns. On the roughly half-mile span of sidewalk improvements from the Town Office to the intersection at Moody's, the road is wide enough to mark off the shoulder and shift vehicle traffic to maintain at least two lanes of alternating traffic. The other span of sidewalk improvements from Main St. to the Old Route 1 intersection is on a much more narrow road and will be more susceptible to vehicle traffic interference. A full lane closure may be needed on this strip of shoulder work with the road being more narrow than Route 1. The AADT is much lower (AADT of 2030 according to 2019 MeDOT Public Map Viewer) on Main St. than Route 1 (AADT of 14220 according to 2019 MeDOT Public Map Viewer) which will make it a much better road for shutting down a lane from a vehicle traffic congestion standpoint. It is expected that most of the sidewalk improvements will be able to be done without shutting down any lanes of traffic, but traffic delineation will have to take place to provide a safe work zone on the shoulder of the road.

There will be no special detours during the sidewalk improvements in this project.

There are no current sidewalks where the sidewalk improvements are implemented and it can be expected that there will be minimal pedestrian traffic. Pedestrians will have to be restricted from work areas by the use of barrels, cones, caution tape, barricades and signs. (Reference MUTCD TA 6H-28)

Closing Statement

This Traffic Control Plan conforms to the requirements of the 2009 edition of the MUTCD. All Traffic Control Devices conforms to the requirements of the MUTCD and NCHRP 350 guidelines.

References

Maine.gov. (n.d.). Retrieved February 10, 2021, from https://www.maine.gov/mdot/mapviewer/

Manual on uniform traffic control devices: For streets and highways. (2009). In Manual on

uniform traffic control devices: For streets and highways. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Dept.

of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration.

APPENDIX







Deed Tyme	Distance Between Signs**							
Road Type	Α	В	С					
Urban (low speed)*	100 feet	100 feet	100 feet					
Urban (high speed)*	350 feet	350 feet	350 feet					
Rural	500 feet	500 feet	500 feet					
Expressway / Freeway	1,000 feet	1,500 feet	2,640 feet					

* Speed category to be determined by the highway agency

The column headings A, B, and C are the dimensions shown in Figures 6H-1 through 6H-46. The A dimension is the distance from the transition or point of restriction to the first sign. The B dimension is the distance between the first and second signs. The C dimension is the distance between the second and third signs. (The "first sign" is the sign in a three-sign series that is closest to the TTC zone. The "third sign" is the sign that is furthest upstream from the TTC zone.)



Section 6C.07 Termination Area

Support:

1

The termination area is the section of the highway where road users are returned to their normal driving path. The termination area extends from the downstream end of the work area to the last TTC device such as END ROAD WORK signs, if posted.

Option:

- 2 An END ROAD WORK sign, a Speed Limit sign, or other signs may be used to inform road users that they can resume normal operations.
- ³ A longitudinal buffer space may be used between the work space and the beginning of the downstream taper.

Section 6C.08 Tapers

Option:

2009 MUTCD Text

- ¹ Tapers may be used in both the transition and termination areas. Whenever tapers are to be used in close proximity to an interchange ramp, crossroads, curves, or other influencing factors, the length of the tapers may be adjusted. Support:
- ² Tapers are created by using a series of channelizing devices and/or pavement markings to move traffic out of or into the normal path. Types of tapers are shown in Figure 6C-2.
- Longer tapers are not necessarily better than shorter tapers (particularly in urban areas with characteristics such as short block lengths or driveways) because extended tapers tend to encourage sluggish operation and to encourage drivers to delay lane changes unnecessarily. The test concerning adequate lengths of tapers involves observation of driver performance after TTC plans are put into effect.

Guidance:

- 4 The appropriate taper length (L) should be determined using the criteria shown in Tables 6C-3 and 6C-4.
- 5 The maximum distance in feet between devices in a taper should not exceed 1.0 times the speed limit in mph.

Option:

MUTCD guidance on device spacing says the maximum distance in feet between devices in a taper should not exceed 1.0 times the speed limit in mph. This distance in feet may be modified to a maximum of 1.25 times the speed limit in mph to correspond with the pavement marking cycle length (length of one broken line segment plus one gap).

Devices in a downstream taper or a one-lane, two-way taper may be placed at a spacing of approximately 25 feet. Support:

- 6 A merging taper requires the longest distance because drivers are required to merge into common road space. *Guidance:*
- 7 A merging taper should be long enough to enable merging drivers to have adequate advance warning and sufficient length to adjust their speeds and merge into an adjacent lane before the downstream end of the transition. Support:
- ⁸ A shifting taper is used when a lateral shift is needed. When more space is available, a longer than minimum taper distance can be beneficial. Changes in alignment can also be accomplished by using horizontal curves designed for normal highway speeds.

Guidance:

9 A shifting taper should have a length of approximately 1/2 L (see Tables 6C-3 and 6C-4).

Support:

A shoulder taper might be beneficial on a high-speed roadway where shoulders are part of the activity area and are closed, or when improved shoulders might be mistaken as a driving lane. In these instances, the same type, but abbreviated, closure procedures used on a normal portion of the roadway can be used.

Guidance:

If used, shoulder tapers should have a length of approximately 1/3 L (see Tables 6C-3 and 6C-4). If a shoulder is used as a travel lane, either through practice or during a TTC activity, a normal merging or shifting taper should be used.

Support:

A downstream taper might be useful in termination areas to provide a visual cue to the driver that access is available back into the original lane or path that was closed.

2009 MUTCD Text

Table 6C-3. Taper Length Criteria for Temporary Traffic Control Zones

Type of Taper	Taper Length					
Merging Taper	at least L					
Shifting Taper	at least 0.5 L					
Shoulder Taper	at least 0.33 L					
One-Lane, Two-Way Traffic Taper	50 feet minimum, 100 feet maximum					
Downstream Taper	50 feet minimum, 100 feet maximum					

Note: Use Table 6C-4 to calculate L

Table 6C-4. Formulas for Determining Taper Length

<u> </u>						
Taper Length (L) in feet						
$L = \frac{WS^2}{60}$						
L= WS						
Where:= taper length in feetL= width of offset in feetW= posted speed limit, or off-peak 85th-percentile speed						

S prior to work starting, or the anticipated operating speed in mph



Figure 6H-6. Shoulder Work with Minor Encroachment (TA-6)

Page 639





December 2009

Sect. 6H.01





Typical Application 10

December 2009

Sect. 6H.01



Figure 6H-28. Sidewalk Detour or Diversion (TA-28)

Note: See Tables 6H-2 and 6H-3 for the meaning of the symbols and/or letter codes used in this figure.

Appendix A.3 : Footbridge Design and Drawings

Appendix A.3.1 : Footbridge Drawings Package











M MARY AND SONS

NOTE: STEEL GRATE DECK AND RAILING ARE TO BE ATTACHED VIA WELDS TO BRIDGE GIRDERS

 $\frac{3}{8}$ " CONNECTION PLATE (TYP)







Appendix A.3.2 : SEWPCP Documents

Erosion and Sediment Control Law (Title 38 M.R.S.A. Section 420-C) The Erosion and Sedimentation Control Law (Erosion Control Law) applies to all construction projects in organized territories that will cause the filling, displacement or exposure of all earthen materials. The Erosion Control Law requires that appropriate measures prevent unreasonable soil erosion and sedimentation beyond the site or into a protected natural resource (such as a river, stream, brook, lake, pond, or wetland). Erosion control measures must be installed before construction begins, and must be maintained until the site is permanently stabilized.

RIPRAP SIZING					
		CHANNEL SLOPE			
		1-2%	2-5%	5-10%	10-20%
MAXIMUM DEPTH OF FLOW (feet)	<0.5	3"	4"	4-6"	6-12"
	1.0	3"	6"	6-12"	12-18"
	2.0	4-6"	6-12"	12-18"	18-24"
	>3.0	6-12"	6-18"	18-24"	24"

Natural Resources Protection Act (Title 38 M.R.S.A. Sections 480 A-JJ) The Natural Resources Protection Act (NRPA) regulates activities such as disturbing soil, placing fill, dredging, removing or displacing soil, sand or vegetation, draining or dewatering and building permanent structures in, on, over, and adjacent to lakes, ponds, river, streams, brooks, wetlands, coastal sand dunes, and tidal areas in organized territories.

Erosion control mix should contain a well-graded mixture of particle sizes and may contain rocks less than 4" in diameter. Erosion control mix should be free of refuse, physical contaminants, and material toxic to plant growth such as fly ash or yard scraping. Large portions of silts, clays or fine sands are not acceptable in the mix. The mix composition should meet the following standards:

- The organic matter content should be between 80% and 100%, dry weight basis.
- Particle size by weight should be 100% passing a 6" screen and 70% to 85% passing a 0.75" screen.
- The organic portion needs to be fibrous and elongated.
- Soluble salts content shall be < 4.0 mmhos/cm.
- The pH should be between 5.0 and 8.0.
Appendix A.4 : Culvert Walkway

Appendix A.4.1 : Culvert Retrofit Sketch



Appendix A.4.2 : Cost Estimation of Culvert Walking Trail

Labor/Tool costs	Unit	Labor Rate	Equipment Rate	Total Hours	Amount Required	Total Project Cost	Time:	
Loader Rental	HR		45	16	1	\$ 720.00	Days	2
Operator	HR	26.31	30	16	1	\$ 900.96	Hours	16
Roller Rental	HR		30	16	1	\$ 480.00		
Dump Truck	HR	21.06	35	16	1	\$ 896.96		
Dump Truck Rental	HR		43	16	1	\$ 688.00		
Laborer	HR	20.24		16	2	\$ 647.68		
Foreman	HR	30		16	1	\$ 480.00		
Sum						\$ 4,813.60		
Material Costs	Unit	Cost per Unit	Amount Required	Total Material Cost				
Common Excavation	CY	21.88	129.6	\$ 2,836.30	*2 ft deep excavatio	n		
Crushed Stone Fill	CY	69.62	32.4	\$ 2,256.20	*0.5 ft of crushed sto	one		
Agg Base CRS - Crushed	CY	45.02	97.2	\$ 4,376.94	*1.5 feet of agg base	2		
				\$ 9,469.44				
Crushed Stone Slope Protection	SY	35.64	194.4	\$ 6,930.00				
				\$ 16,399.44	*with full protection	of trail		
TOTAL:	with	\$ 14,283.04						
	without	\$ 21,213.04						

Appendix A.5 : Walking Trails Tax Maps



Appendix A.5.2 : Elm Street To Culvert Area



Appendix A.6 : Cost Estimations

Appendix A.6.1 : Cost Estimation of the Sidewalk

	A	8	-	0	D	ш		LL	U	т	-	7	×	_	Μ	z	0
	Labor/Tool costs	Unit	Labor R	ate	quipment Rate	Total Hours	Amou	nt Required To	tal Project Cost								
2	Loader	HR		26	40		112.5	1 \$	7,425.00			Sidewalk Dimension	s		Estimat	ed time for p	broject
m	Loader Rental	HR			45		112.5	1 \$	5,062.50		Width (ft)		4			3 weeks	
4	Office Trailer	MO			250		20	1 \$	5,000.00		Length (ft)	185	0		11	0 hours	(no overtime)
S	Roller	HR		25	30		112.5	1 \$	6,187.50		Height (ft)	0	5				
9	Roller Rental	HR			30		112.5	1 \$	3,375.00								
7	Dump Truck	HR		21	35		112.5	2 \$	12,600.00								
	Dump Truck Rental	HR			43		112.5	2 \$	9,675.00								
6	Flagger	HR		13			120	2 \$	3,120.00								
10	Laborer (skilled)	HR		32			120	3 \$	11,520.00								
1	Laborer (unskilled)	HR		18			120	4 \$	8,640.00								
12	Foreman	HR		30			120	1 \$	3,600.00								
13	Sum							Ş	76,205.00								
14																	
15												Total Cost Estimate:	\$ 93,744	.57			
16																	
17	Material Costs	Unit	Cost pe	r Unit A	mount Required	Additonal	Total I	Aaterial Cost									
18	Common Excavation	CY		22	274		6 5	6,160.00									
19	Bituminous Pavement Tack	U		14	S		\$ 0	70.00									
20	Bituminous Pavement (403.209)	т		176	38		2 \$	7,040.00									
21	Aggregate Base Course - Type A	CY		71	18		2 \$	1,420.00									
22	Detectable Warning Plate	EA		122	16		Ś	1,952.00									
23	Cone	EA		16	20		Ş	320.00									
24	Signs						Ş	577.57									
25	Sum						Ş	17,539.57									
26																	
27	Signs	Number of Sig	gns Cost of :	Sign													
28	Shoulder Work		5 \$	78.03													
29	End Road Work		2 \$	66.00													
30	Road Work Ahead		2 \$	86.72													
31	One Lane Road Ahead		2 \$	86.72													
32	Lane Shift Arrows		2 \$	86.70													
33	Flagger Sign		2 \$	86.70													
34	Be prepared to Stop		2 \$	86.70													

Ч Ч		Estimated time for project	6 weeks	240 hours			Steel Grate Deck Cost \$ 12,371.20																Total Cost Estimate: \$ 143,968.60															
т																																						
IJ	tal Project Cost	4,200.00	3,000.00	4,860.00	6,720.00	5,160.00	13,920.00	15,360.00	8,640.00	7,200.00	7,440.00	5,520.00	2,400.00	3,600.00	13,440.00	2,400.00	1802	7,200.00	112,862.00																			
L	Amount Rquired Tot	1 \$	1 \$	1 \$	2 \$	2 \$	2 \$	2 \$	2 \$	1 \$	1 \$	1 \$	1 \$	1 \$	1 \$	1 \$	1	1 \$	\$				Total Material Cost	\$ 1,500.00	\$ 715.40	\$ 112.33	\$ 600.00	\$ 250.00	\$ 190.00	\$ 120.00	\$ 200.00	\$ 300.00	\$ 120.00	\$ 14,321.44	\$ 154.56	\$ 151.67	ڊ ،	\$ 18,735.40
ш	otal Hours	60	60	60	60	60	240	240	240	240	240	240	240	240	240	240	4	240																				
Q	Equipment Rate 1	45	50	50	35	43							10	15	30	10							Amount Required	12	1022	204.24	4	100	1	2	4	2	1	21280	48	275.76		
υ	Labor Rate	25		31	21		29	32	18	30	31	23			26		175	30					Cost per Unit /	125	0.7	0.55	150	2.5	190	60	50	150	120	0.673	3.22	0.55		
	Unit	HR	НR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR					Unit	ς	В	В	EA	SF	BOX	BOX	BOX	EA	EA	B	SI	8		
4	Labor/Equipment costs	Excavator	Excavator Rental	45T Crane	Dump Truck	Dump Truck Rental	Iron Worker	Laborer (skilled)	Laborer (unskilled)	Foreman	Carpenter	Rigger	Concrete Vibrator	Welder(Machine)	Lull	Generator	Pump Truck	Welder	Sum				Material Costs	Concrete	Epoxy Coated Rebar	Bearing Plates	Concrete Barrier	Forms	Welding Rods	Duplex Nails	Screws	Impact Gun	Hammer Drill	W33x130 80ft	L3x2(1/2)x1/4 88in	Steel plate 32"x11.5"x3/8"	Signs	Sum
	-	2	с	4	ŝ	9	7	00	6	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	32	33	34	35	36	37	38

Appendix A.6.3 : Footbridge Deck Quote



Indiana Gratings Inc. 210 W Douglas Street P O Box 1762 Martinsville, IN 46151 765-342-7191 Fax: 765/342-0382

Quote 1054

Date: 03/18/2021 Valid Until: 03/28/2021 Printed Date: 03/18/2021 Page: 1

Bill To:

University of Maine 377 Manktown Rd. Waldoboro, ME 04572 Ship To:

University of Maine 377 Manktown Rd. Waldoboro, ME 04572

Prospect ID	Con	tact Name		Terms	Ship Via	F.O.B.	Sales Rep	Ship From
UOFM	ANT	THONY		NET 30	Best Way	ORG/FR	BM	IGI
Order	Qty	U.O.M.	Item Num Descriptio	ber n	I	Unit Price	Tax	Extended Price
	640	SF	N21			19.33000	N	12,371.20
			1 1/2" x 3	3/16" 19W4 Welde	ed Steel Bar Grating			
			Galvaniz 1 Area: 8	ed Finish - Smoot 80'0" x 8'0" span	h - Trim Banded			
Lead Ti 1 Shipm Weight:	me: 7 nent i 7424	10-12 working d s included to W 4#	lays /alkdoboro	o, ME		Non Taxable S Taxable S	ubtotal ubtotal	12,371.20 0.00
							Тах	0.00
							Total	12,371.20

LIGHT DUTY WELDED STEEL 19-W-4 / 19-W-2





19-W-4/19-W-2 Panel Width Chart (in.)

Dimensions Are Out-to-Out of Bearing Bars**

					• •									-	
No. of Bars	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16
³ /16 [‴] Bars	1 ³ /8	2⁹/ 16	3 ³ / ₄	4 ¹⁵ / ₁₆	6 ¹ /8	7⁵/ 16	8 ¹ / ₂	9 ¹¹ / ₁₆	10 ⁷ /8	12¹/ 16	13 ¹ /4	14⁷/ 16	15 ⁵ /8	16 ¹³ /16	18
No. of Bars	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
³ /16 [‴] Bars	19³/ 16	20 ³ /8	21⁹/ 16	22³/ 4	23¹⁵/ 16	25¹/ 8	26⁵/ 16	27¹/ 2	28¹¹/ 16	29⁷/ 8	31¹/ 16	32¹/ 4	33⁷/ 16	34⁵/ 8	35¹³/ 16

**Deduct 1/16 for 1/8 bearing bars. Standard panel widths indicated in blue.

Load Table 19-W-4/19-W-2

Bar	Ped	Wt.	Sec. Prop							Clear	Span					
Size,	Span,	Lbs.	Sx*, in ³		oʻ oʻʻ	oʻ oʻ'	o' 0″	oʻ o‴	1' 0"	A' 0"		E' 0"	c′ 0″	o' o''	7' 0"	0' 0"
Inches	Inches	Sq. Ft.	lx*, in⁴		2 - 0	2 - 6	3-0	3-6	4 - 0	4 - 6	5-0	5-6	6-0	6-6	7 - 0	8-0
			0 178	U	533	341	237	174	133		U - S	afe unifo	rm load	in pound	ds/sa.ft.	
$^{3}/_{4} \times ^{3}/_{16}$	46	5.67	0.170	D	0.099	0.155	0.224	0.304	0.397	-	C - S	afe conc	entrated	load in r	ounds/ft	
14/2 110		0.07	0.067	<u>C</u>	533	426	355	305	266	-	a	ating wi	dth		041140,11	
					0.079	0.124	0.179	0.244	0.317	405	D-D	eflection	in inch	es		
4.			0.211	<u> </u>	0.075	404	201	200	0 209	0 279		0			laflaation	
1 × 1/8	51	5.15		C	632	505	421	361	316	281				aus anu (an in this	table ar	
			0.105	D	0.060	0.093	0.134	0.183	0.239	0.302			the	oretical.	and are	
				U	947	606	421	309	237	187	152		bas	sed on a	unit stres	ss
43/			0.316	D	0.074	0.116	0.168	0.228	0.298	0.377	0.467		of '	18,000 ps	si.	
1 × 7/16	57	7.35	0.450	С	947	758	632	541	474	421	379					
			0.158	D	0.060	0.093	0.134	0.182	0.239	0.302	0.372			% Ope	n Area*	
			0 3 2 0	U	987	632	439	322	247	195	158	130	В	ars ¹	/8″ 3/	16″
$1^{1}/_{4} \times 1/_{8}$	61	6 20	0.329	D	0.060	0.093	0.134	0.182	0.239	0.302	0.373	0.449	4	ČCC 8	3% 77	7%
1 /4 / /0	01	0.20	0 206	С	987	789	658	564	493	439	395	359	2	CC 7	5% 71	1%
			0.200	D	0.048	0.074	0.107	0.146	0.191	0.242	0.298	0.361		1		
			0.493	<u>U</u>	1480	947	658	483	370	292	237	196	164	-		
$1^{1}/4 \times {}^{3}/16$	67	9.03		0	0.060	0.093	0.134	0.182	0.238	0.301	0.373	0.451	0.535	-		
			0.308		1480	1184	987	0 1 4 6	0 101	0.241	0.208	0.260	493	-		
				<u> </u>	1/21	0.074	622	0.140	255	0.241	227	199	158			
.1. 1.			0.474	<u> </u>	0.050	0.078	0 112	0 152	0 198	0 252	0 310	0 376	0 447	-		
1 '/2 × '/8	70	7.35		c	1421	1137	947	812	711	632	568	517	474			
			0.355	D	0.040	0.062	0.089	0.122	0.159	0.201	0.248	0.301	0.358	-		
			0.744	U	2132	1364	947	696	533	421	341	282	237	202		
11/2 3/40	77	10.04	0.711	D	0.050	0.078	0.112	0.152	0.199	0.251	0.310	0.376	0.447	0.525		
1 /2 × /10	11	10.94	0.522	С	2132	1705	1421	1218	1066	947	853	775	711	656		
			0.555	D	0.040	0.062	0.089	0.122	0.159	0.201	0.248	0.300	0.358	0.420		
			0.967	U	2901	1857	1289	947	725	573	464	384	322	275	237	181
$1^{3}/_{4} \times {}^{3}/_{16}$	87	12.62	0.007	D	0.043	0.067	0.096	0.130	0.170	0.215	0.266	0.322	0.383	0.450	0.522	0.680
			0.846	<u>C</u>	2901	2321	1934	1658	1451	1289	1160	1055	967	893	829	725
					0.034	0.053	0.077	0.104	0.136	0.1/2	0.213	0.257	0.306	0.360	0.417	0.545
2.			1.263	<u> </u>	3/09	2420	1004	0.114	947	0 1 9 0	000	0.000	421	0.204	309	237
2 × 3/ 16	96	14.30		<u>c</u>	3789	3032	2526	2165	1805	168/	1516	1378	1263	1166	1092	0.590
			1.263	–	0.030	0.047	0.067	0.091	0 119	0 151	0 186	0 225	0 268	0.315	0.365	0 / 77
				U	4796	3069	2132	1566	1199	947	767	634	533	454	392	300
011			1.599	D	0.033	0.052	0.074	0.101	0.132	0.168	0.207	0.250	0.298	0.350	0.406	0.530
∠ 14 × 116	105	15.87	4 700	С	4796	3837	3197	2741	2398	2132	1918	1744	1599	1476	1370	1199
			1.798	D	0.026	0.041	0.060	0.081	0.106	0.134	0.165	0.200	0.238	0.280	0.324	0.424
			1 074	U	5921	3789	2632	1933	1480	1170	947	783	658	561	483	370
21/2 × 3/16	113	17 55	1.974	D	0.030	0.047	0.067	0.091	0.119	0.151	0.186	0.225	0.268	0.315	0.365	0.477
L 12 ~ 110	115	17.55	2 467	С	5921	4737	3947	3383	2960	2632	2368	2153	1974	1822	1692	1480
			2.407	D	0.024	0.037	0.054	0.073	0.095	0.121	0.149	0.180	0.215	0.252	0.292	0.381

*Based on 10.105 bars/ft. of grating width. Bearing bars $1^{3}/16^{\circ}$ c.c. Add .8 lbs./sq. ft. for 19-W-2. Note: Grating for spans to the left of the heavy line have a deflection less than $1/4^{\circ}$ for uniform loads of 100 lbs./sq. ft. This is the maximum deflection to afford pedestrian comfort and can be exceeded for other types of load at the discretion of the engineer. The actual Ped (pedestrian) Span under this condition is shown above for each size of grating. When serrated grating is specified, the depth of grating required for a specific load will be $1/4^{\circ}$ greater than that shown in these tables.



Appendix A.6.4 : Prefabricated Bridge Quotes



Anthony Salafia University of Maine Civil Engineering Program anthony.salafia@maine.edu

Project:	UMaine Capstone Project
Location:	Orono, ME
Contech #:	
Date:	February 12, 2021

The following is a Continental Pedestrian Bridge System ENGINEER'S COST ESTIMATE for the subject project. This ESTIMATE is intended for preliminary estimating purposes only and should <u>not</u> be interpreted as a final QUOTATION. The information presented is based on the most current data made available to Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC (CES).

CES will fabricate and deliver the following described Continental Pedestrian Bridge components and appurtenances:

- Option: Pressure treated wood deck
- Bridge Model: Continental Connector Pedestrian Steel Truss
- Configuration: H-section
- Length: 80 ft (out to out dimension)
- Width: 10 ft (clear between structural elements)
- Finish: Unpainted weathering steel
- Decking: Pressure treated wood
- Railing Type: Horizontal safety rails with 4" maximum openings
- Railing Height: 48" above deck
- Included safety features: Steel toe plate, wood rub rail
- Design Code: AASHTO LRFD Guide Specification for Design of Pedestrian Bridges
- Design Vehicle: H-5 (10,000 lbs)
- Live Load: 90 psf
- Wind Load: 35 psf
- Bearing pads and plates: Included
- Preliminary Assembled Weight: 27,000 lbs (to be verified upon final design)
- Number of sections: 2 (field bolting by others)

ESTIMATE: \$85,000 Delivered (F.O.B.)

- Option: Concrete Deck
- Bridge Model: Continental Connector Pedestrian Steel Truss
- Configuration: H-section
- Length: 80 ft (out to out dimension)
- Width: 10 ft (clear between structural elements)
- Finish: Unpainted weathering steel
- Decking: Stay-in-place forms, included
- Finished Surface: Reinforced concrete (by others)
- Railing Type: Horizontal safety rails with 4" maximum openings
- Railing Height: 48" above deck
- Included safety features: Steel toe plate, wood rub rail
- Design Code: AASHTO LRFD Guide Specification for Design of Pedestrian Bridges
- Design Vehicle: H-5 (10,000 lbs)
- Live Load: 90 psf
- Wind Load: 35 psf
- Bearing pads and plates: Included
- Preliminary Assembled Weight: 20,000 lbs (to be verified upon final design)
- Number of sections: 2 (field bolting by others)

Excluded Items:

CES will not or does not include the cost for:

- 1. Applicable Sales and/or Use Tax
- All construction surveying, including field measurement and verification of abutments and anchor bolt placement.
 Design, excavation and construction of bridge foundations and/or piers.
- Unloading all trucks delivering CES materials.
- Erection and Installation of the bridge.
 Providing and installing all anchor bolts. Provide and install any wing wall or approach railings.
- 7. Materials and work for reinforced concrete deck slab (if applicable).
- 8. Any costs associated with testing by an independent agency.
- 9. Costs associated with any special inspection. CES will provide access to facilities and assist with coordination to accommodate special inspection.

We look forward to working with you on this project. If you have any questions, please contact us.

Sincerely.

Just learch

Justin Reardon, P.E. **Truss Consultant Contech Engineered Solutions** (207) 885-6125 jreardon@conteches.com







Date: February 16th, 2021
Project: Anthony Salafia - Maine
Scope: Design/Engineering, Manufacturing, & Bridge Supply
Company: Bridge Brothers Inc
Contact: Kenny Adams

Bridge Brothers scope will include all structural engineering associated with the bridges and issue our state stamped PE design package. The bridge structures and all associated designs will be in adherence to AASHTO design guide for bridge structures. See below for further breakdown of our scope of work:

Structural & Civil Engineering:

• Maine PE Stamped Design & Calculation Package for the Bridges

Option 1 Manufacturing:

- Qty (1) 10' x 80' Pedestrian Bridge
- Weathering Steel Pratt Bridge
- 90 PSF Live Load
- Galvanized/Corrugated Decking
 - PT Pine Decking Option Add \$10,644
 - Metal Grate Decking Option Add \$32,524
- Horizontal Railing

Estimated Project Schedule

- Structural Designs
- Bridge Manufacturing & Freight

If you have any questions or require additional information, please call. Pricing is valid for 30 days from date on proposal unless otherwise noted.

4 Weeks

12 Weeks

* All prices shown are valid for thirty (30) days only unless otherwise stated above. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the information herein is a proposal only and should not be construed as a promise to perform absent the separate written consent of Bridge Brothers, Inc.

"Due to the current inflation in steel prices this proposal is only valid for 30 days from the time of proposal and subject to the HRC steel index increases or decreases at the time of material order."

Regards,

Kenny Adams / Project Engineer / 770.696.8946 / kadams@bridgebrothers.com

TURN KEY PREFABRICATED BRIDGES

<u>\$87,917</u>



e: sales@bridgebrothers.com t: 866.258.3401 www.bridgebrothers.com



TURN KEY PREFABRICATED BRIDGES

Appendix A.6.5 : Cost Estimation of The Walk-Under Culvert

¥			veeks	ours												\$ 59,487.00								
7		Estimated time for project	4 v	160 h												Total Cost Estimate:								
-																								
т																								
Ð	al Project Cost	6,840.00	4,480.00	3,440.00	10,240.00	8,640.00	4,800.00	2,480.00	1,600.00	3,840.00	8,782.00	55,142.00												
	Tota	1 \$	2 \$	2 \$	2 \$	3 Ş	1 \$	1 \$	1 \$	4 \$	2 \$	Ş				ost	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
LL.	Amount Rquired															fotal Material Co	\$ 2,625.0	\$ 545.0	\$ 435.0	\$ 120.0	\$ 200.0	\$ 300.0	\$ 120.0	\$ 4,345.0
ш	Total Hours	120	40	40	160	160	160	80	160	80	80					-								
D	Equipment Rate	30	35	43					10	12	48					Amount Required	21	218	30	2	4	2	1	
C	Labor Rate	27	21		32	18	30	31								Cost per Unit	125	2.5	13	60	50	150	120	
	Unit	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR					Unit	СY	SF	СY	BOX	ВОХ	EA	EA	
A	Labor/Equipment costs	Skidsteer	Dump Truck	Dump Truck Rental	Laborer (skilled)	Laborer (unskilled)	Foreman	Carpenter	Generator	15lb Chipping Hammer	Compressor	Sum				Material Costs	Concrete	Forms	Fill Material	Duplex Nails	Screws	Impact Gun	Hammer Drill	Sum
		2	с	4	5	9	7	00	6	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24

Appendix A.6.6 : Cost Estimation of the Walking Trails

	A		U	D	Ш	Ŀ	IJ	т	-	ſ	¥
-	Labor/Tool costs	Unit	Labor Rate	Equipment Rate	Total Hours	Amount Required	Total Project	Cost		Time:	
2	Loader Rental	HR		45	16	1	\$ 720	00.		Days	2
m	Operator	HR	36	30	16	1	\$ 1,056	00.		Hours	16
4	Roller Rental	HR		30	16	1	\$ 480	00.			
5	Dump Truck	HR	21	35	16	1	\$ 896	00.			
9	Dump Truck Rental	HR		43	16	1	\$ 688	00.			
7	Laborer	HR	18		16	2	\$ 576	00.			
00	Foreman	HR	30		16	1	\$ 480	.00			
6	Sum						\$ 4,896	.00			
10										Total Cost Estimate:	\$ 21,295.44
11	Material Costs	Unit	Cost per Unit	Amount Required	Total Material Cos	t					
12	Common Excavation	С	21.88	129.6	\$ 2,836.30	*2 ft deep excavation					
10	3 Crushed Stone Fill	С	69.62	32.4	\$ 2,256.20	*0.5 ft of crushed stone					
14	Agg Base CRS - Crushed	С	45.02	97.2	\$ 4,376.94	*1.5 feet of agg base					
1					\$ 9,469.44						
16	Crushed Stone Slope Protection	n SY	35.64	194.4	\$ 6,930.00						
17					\$ 16,399.44	*with full protection of trail					
18											
19	TOTAL:	without	\$14,365.44								
20		with	\$21,295.44								

Appendix A.6.7 : Cost Estimation of the Cut/Fill Plan for the Path Leading from the Sidewalk to Walk-Under Culvert

К			weeks		hours								\$ 35,246.00			
٦		Estimated time for project	2		80								Total Cost Estimate:			
_																
Н																
C	otal Project Cost	6,000.00	4,000.00	2,200.00	1,200.00	8,960.00	6,880.00	3,200.00	2,400.00	34,840.00						
Ľ	Amount Rquired To	1	1	1 \$	1	2 \$	2 \$	2 \$	1 \$	•••				Fotal Material Cost	\$ 406.00	\$ 406.00
Ш	Fotal Hours	80	80	40	40	80	80	80	80							
D	Equipment Rate	45	50	30	30	35	43							Amount Required	28	
C	Labor Rate	30		25		21		20	30					Cost per Unit	13	
Θ	Unit	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR	HR					Unit	С	
A	Labor/Equipment costs	Excavator	Excavator Rental	Roller	Roller Rental	Dump Truck	Dump Truck Rental	Laborer (unskilled)	Foreman	Sum				Material Costs	Fill Material	Sum
	-	2	m	4	2	9	7	00	6	10	11	12	13	14	15	16